
liNITED STA,TES DlSl'IUCT COURT 

SOUTHEltN DlSTRICr Of. .FLO.H,lDA 

Case No.1: ll-cv-20765-A.J 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v .. 

LM IMPORT-EXPORT, INC. 
A Florida corporation, and 

HUNG 1.J\M, 
lndividnaUy and as 
~Hl officer of the corporation, 

Dcf(mdants. 

PROPOSED CONSENT IJECRE£ FOR PAYMENT OFCIVIL PENA.LTY 

WlIEREi\S the United States of America has filed a Complaint against LM Import-

Export,lnc .. and Hung Lam (,'defendants'") to sectH"(~civil pcriatLicsand a permanent iI'ljunction 

for defendants . violatiol1S of statutes and regulations enforced by the U.S. Consumer Product 

Safety Commission ("CPSC'" or ';Commission'·). including Section 1901'111<:: Consumer Product 

Safety Act CCPS",") .. 15 U.S.c. § 2068(a), ane! Section 4 of the Federal Ilazardous Subslances 

;\c( ("'FIISA"). 15 U.S.C. ~ 1263:. 

W\·IEREAS this COllrt on March 10,201 !. entered the Consent Decree fbI' Permanent 

Injunctioll. at Dkt. Entry #4. which specifically retained this COllrt'sjul'isdiction as to the 

resolution of the civil penalty: 
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WHEREAS defendants will cmer into H. pica () C gu ilty·· which inc ludes a criminal 

forfeiture 01'$862.500······ ptlrSURnl to FccL R. Crim. P. Il(c)(I)(C), to an inft)l"lnarion filed in 

Uniled SI({fes v. Hung Lam. c[ al .. Criminal Action No. 12-cr-20048-KiVIW alleging several 

violations based on conduct underlying the Complaint and Lhis Decree, including conspiracy to 

violate the CPSA and f1\SA: 

WI·IEREAS the parties conscnt to entry oflhls Consent Decree for Payment of Civil 

Penalty (the "l)ccree"), without contest. and before any testimony has been takcn: 

WllEREAS .. dclcndnnts have waived servicc oflhe Summons and Complaint; the pnl'ties 

are rcprescl1lcd by the attorneys whose numcs app~~ar hCl'cancr: and the parties want to settle til is 

nCLioll [or payment of a civil penalty upon the i()llowing terms and conditions. without 

adjudicalion of any issue of fact 01' law, 

THEREFORE, on the agreement of the parties .. it is hercbyORDERED. i\ DJUDGED. 

AND DECREED as Ibllo"\"$: 

FINDINGS 

I, ThisCourt hasjurisdiction over thesttbject n1;;ittcr ofthisaction ptlrsuant to 28 

l ' S Co<, ., S I""" 1 1"·1 ~ . I I" J5( ) .i." •.• ~~ .J.) , Y1'), ill1( j) a. 

'IhisCourt hasjurisdictron. under 15 U.S.c. §§ 2071 en) and I 267(a). to restrain 

any violation \)1' the CPSA and FllSA: alld jurisdiction, under 15 U .S.c. §§ 2069 and 1264(c), to 

assess civil penalties for kncl\ving violations of the CPSA and I-liSA. "Knmvingly" is defined as 

"( 1 ) the having of actual knowledge. or (2) the presurned having or knowledge deemed to be 

p()ssesscd by a reasonable man who acts in the errC1l1l1stanccs. including knowledge obtainable 

upon tbe exercise of due care to ascertain [be truth of representatioJ1s." 15 U.S.c. §~ 1264(c)(5) 

and 2069( d). A II references to the CPSA and FHSA refer to those statutes as amended by the 
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Consumer Product Safety lmprov~mcnt .Act of2008. Public Law Il 0-314 c-'CPSfA "). and all 

terms llsed herein shall have the same meaning as dc!incd and used in the CPSA. CPSIA. and 

FllSA. 

3. Venue in the Southern District oCFlorida is propel' under 28 USc. §~ l391(b). 

(c) and 1395{a). 

4. At. all times relevant hereto, LM Import-Export, Inc., was and is a "manuHlcturer" 

(the definition includes any person who imports a consumer product) and "retailer" of consumer 

products. as defined in Section 3 of the CPSA 15 U.S.c. § 2052(<1). 

5. ;\t all tirncs relevant hereto .. II ling Lam was and is the president and o\vncr of LM 

Import-Export. Inc" and as such. is the individual responsible fbI' ensuring compliance wilh the 

requirements'oCthe CPSA. the FI·ISA. and the !'cgulaLiolls issued thereunder. At all limes 

n:levHllt to the Complaint. he formulated. directed. contro I IecL or participated in the [lets and 

practices orthe corporate defendant. induding the acts and practices set forth illthc Complaint. 

At. all times relevant hereto. Lam kncw oL and had Lhe authority to control. the acts and practices 

of LM Import-Export. Inc .. regarding the importation, distribution. 01' sale of consumer products. 

6. The Complaint states claims upon which relicfmny be gmnted against den.::ndants 

d S " I" fl"C'lJS"\ I· r ·S'C····2068') IS' .. 1 t"l j"IIS'A l-lIS'C' S un er .. cellon '1 () . t 1C . ,f. ::> 1..1 .... " S ), lao ane .. cctlOn '+ 0" t 1C • ~ •... )." ..... ~ 

1263. 

7. I)cfendants knowingly violated the CPSA .. 15 l.LS.C § 2068(a)( I ), by selling. 

Dflering lhr sale. manufacturing fC)l'sale, distributing in commerce. or Importing il1to the United. 

States. l'OIlSLHllCI' products. or o1.her products or substances tbat are reg.ulated under the CPSA or 

any ()ther Acts enforced by the Commissiol1 that are nor in confonnity with an applicable 

IX)l1SlIl11i;;r product safety rule under the CPSA. or any similar rule, regulation. standard. or ban 
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under any other .A.CI cnlbreed by the Commission. DeIendants have violated the CPSA by 

importing, offeringn)r sale. selling, and distributing toys and other articles intended fbI' LIse by 

ell ildren that bear lead-contain tng paint prohibited under 16 C.F. R. § 1303.4(b), and further 

violated (he CPSA by imponing, offering for sale. selling, and distribUTing in commerce. 

ch i Idrcn' s toys or ell i Ie! care art k:ies, as deli ned by 15 U.S.C:, § 2057c( c)( I )(13) and (C). that 

contain phthalate concentralions exceeding the allowable amount pursuant to 15 USC. § 

2057c(a). 

8. Defendants knowingly violated the CPSA. 15 U.s.c. § 2068(0)(2)(13). by selling. 

ofli:ring fbr sale. I1U1l1UHlcturing for sale, distributing in cotnmerce. or irnporting into the United 

States, consumer products. or other products or substances that aresu~iect toa volllntary 

corrective action taken by the manufacturer, in consultation. with tbe Commission. ofvihich 

action the Commission has notified the public, or [fthe sener. distributor, or Immufactllrcr knew. 

or should have known. of sLlch voluntary corrective action. 

9. Defendants knowingly violated the CPS/\. 15 U.S.c. ~ 2068(a)(2)(D). and the 

FIlSA. 15 U.S.c, § 1263(a) and (c), by introducing or e3\1sing the introduction or del ivcry for 

introduclion intointerstale commerce of banned hazardous substances, 01' the receipt in interstate 

commerce of banned hazardous substances and the delivery or proffered delivery thercot'Yor pay 

or otherwisc. These banned hazardolls substances consist oCtoys and other articles intended for 

lise by children under thrce years ot' age, which present a chOking, aspiration, or ingestion hazard 

because or small parts, which arc banneclundcr 16 C.F.R. § 1500.18(a)(9):children·s products 

containing lead. which are banned under 15 U.S.c.§ 1278a: and rattles that failed to meet the 

requirements oftcsting under 16 c.r:. R. Purl 1510 .. and are banned under 16 CF.R. § 

1500.II)(a)( 15). 
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10. Defendants kno\vingly violated the CPS/\, 15 U.S.C § 2068(a){4), by ftliling to 

furnish to the CPSC the inH.wl11ation required by 15 USc. § 2064(b). 

II. DeH::ndant:; knowingly violated the CPSA. 15 USC:. § 2068(a)(6). by nliJing to 

il.l1'llish ccrtilkates rcquli'cd by this Act or any other Act enforced by the ('omrnission. and 

I'urthcr. by fhiling 10 comply with a requirement 0 r Section 14 (including the requirement (~x 

tracking labels) or any rule or regulation under such section. 

12. Defendants knowingty violated the FIISA. 15 U.S.C. § 1263(£1) and (c). by 

introducing or c(lusing the introduction or delivery for introduction into interstate commerce of 

misbranded hazardous substances. or the receipt in interstate COll1merce of m isl:mmded hazardous 

substances. and the delivery or proffered deliverythereof't()t' payor otherwise. These 

misbranded hazardous substances consist ofLOys or games intended for children at least three 

years old, but not older than sixycrll'S old, which include small parts that do not bear the 

cautionary statement specified under 15 U.S.c. § 1278:(a)(2) and art materials or art material 

products. which may have the potential to produce chronic, adverse health effeCtS. as dcnned 

under 16 c.r. R. ~ 1500.14(b)(8)(i)(B)(3). and which do not meet the labeling requirements umk~r 

16 cr.R. ~ ISOO.14(b)(8)(i)(El. 

The C\)urCs lindings ill the Consent L)ccrcc I(Jr PCl'1nnncnt Injunction. at Dkt. 

E.l1lry #4. remain in full cn;;ct. 

14. Defendants hereby waive all rights to appeal or oti1cnvisc challenge or contest the 

validity of this Decree. 

15. Entry of this Dt:crcc is in the public interest. 
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rr IS THr.:,r~EFORE ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 

ORDI.::R 

I. Defcnti(tnts shall pay in total 1\vo hundred eighty seven thousand, five· hundred 

dollars ($:::87,500.00) to the United States as acivi[ penalty, pursuant to 15 U.S.c.§§ 1264(c) 

and 2069(a). The civil pen~tlt:y shall be paid inltlU no I.uter than 72 months ancr the sentencing 

hearing in United ,(,'rates v. Hung; Lmn, et aL. Criminal Action No. 12-cr-20048-KM W, as 

f()llows: 

a. Seventy-five thousand C\ollms ($75.000.00) shall be paid 011 or bci()I'c seven (7) 

calendar days thH11 the date ()I~thc ('OLlrl'S entry of this Decree: 

b. Seven thousand live hundred donal'S ($7.500) shall be paid on or bel()I'c 90 days 

after [he sentencing hearing in Un ired S'lares v. llimg Lm'll, .ct aL. Criminal /\etion No, 12-cr-

20048-Ki'v1W, with subsequent payments of no less than $7.500 every ninety (90) days 

thercel fieI': and 

c. A tinal "balloon" payrnent of the remaining balance. i r any, of the civil penalty on 

the f1rst day of the scventv-second (72) 11'10n1:11 foliowinQ the date of the sentencing hcarjrH~ in "'"" ...... . . . ....... ~ 

Unired SW{es \', Hung Lam, et aI., Crim inal Action No, [2-cr-20048-KM W. 

2. Payment shall be made by electronic fund transfer in accordance with procedures 

specified by the Consumer Protection 13raneh. Civil Division. United States !)epartlncnt of 

Justice. Washington. D.C. 20530, Any cover letter accompanying correspondence regarding 

this payment shall include the title of this litigation and a relC:l'cllce to DJ# I 04~ 18-24. 

3. If defendants withdraw (i'om the guilty plea pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 

I I (c)( I )(C) in United Slales v. !fllllg LOIl1, et al.. Criminal Action No. 12-cr-2004S-KlVlvV, if the 

p lea is not accepted by that court or ifthc scntenci ng bearing in United Slates v. Hung Lam, el 
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nl.. Criminal Action No. 12-cr-20048-KMW for any reason does not occur by December 30, 

2012. then defendants shall pay the remaining balance, irany. urthe civil penally no laler thall 

February 28,2013. 

4. In the evenl of any default on the paY'menl required in Paragraph 1. which ddlllllt 

continues n)1' ten (10) calendar dnys beyond the due date of the p8ym;;nt, the entire unpaid 

amount. together with interest, as computed pu rsuant to 28 USc. ~ 1961 (a) fh)rn the date of 

clel~lU It 10 the date of payment, sha Il immediately become due and payable. 

5. ThejudgmcI11 amount set forth above represents a civil penalty owed to the 

United States Government, is not compensation for act:md pecuniary loss, and.; therefore. is not 

subject to discharge uncleI' the Bankruptcy Code pursuant to 11 U.s.c. § 523(a)(7). 

6. '['he provisions of this Decree are separate: and severabk 1"1'0111 one another. 1 f any 

provision is stayed or determined to be invalid. the n:rnaining provisions shall remain in ['ull 

7. Each parLY shall bear its O\VI1 C~)sts and attorneys' ices. 

8. This Court shalt retain jUflsdiction of this maLter lor purposes of cOllstructioll, 

modi iication. and en f()l'cemem of this Decree and the Consent Decree [or Permanent Injunction, 

entered March 10. 20 I I. 

9. 'rile parties. by their respectivc counsel, hereby consent to cntry of the lbregoing 

Decree, which shall constitute a nnaljudgl11cnt and order in this matter. <rhe parties l'lmi1er 

stipulate and agree that the ent!'y of the foregoing Dcc:ree shall constitute full, complete, and final 

settlement of this action. 

SO ORDERED this day of 

United States Dislrict Judge 
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30th April

Robert N. Scola. Jr.
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FOR Tl!E DEFENDANTS: 

.~~.~/!!J!:!_·' .. ?:::,_._~.eJ~_ .... ..................... _ ...... . 
MICIILLLE L,. MEJIA 
Florida Har No. 0027074 
Sandler, Travis & Rosenberg, P,/\. 
J 000 Northwest 57th Court. Suite 600 
fV1 iami, Florida 33126 
fclephonc: 305-913-8651 
Fax: 305-167-5155 
1.:111(1 i I: ITll11<.:jiu!@sll-rrade.com 
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FOl{ PLAINTIFF 
UNITE!) STATl:::S OF' AMER leA: 

WfF'REDO.l\. FEHRER 
U.S. AtLorney 

STUART F. DELERY 
Acting Assistant Attorney Gel1eral 

fvlAAfvlE [:'Vv'US1-MENSAll FRl1vlPONG 
Acting Deputy Assistant AttorncyCienerai 

ivlICH/\EL BL,UM[: 
Director 

KENNE'rt-1 L .lOST 
Assistant Director 

CI~ -ec-' -----. 

CourtlD #A5501543 
'rrin! Attorney 
Consumer Protection !31'anch 
U.S. Department 0 [' Justice 
P.O, Box 3R6 
\Vashillglon. D,C, 20044 
'Telephone: 202-532-4721 
Facslmjle:202-514-8742 
L:mail: cindyj.cho((ELlsdoj.gov 

01: C:C)UNSEL: 
CfIE:'RYL A. FAI.VEY 
(Jeneral Counsel 

MELISSA V. 11AMPSl'1JRE 
Assistant Geneml Counsel 

11,ARRJE'r KERWIN 
Attorney 
Offic(;,~ ofthc(icncral Counsel 
Consumer Product Safety Commission 
f3cthesda. Ml) 208 J 4 
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